
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Approval of Minutes – September 18, 2017 

B. Approval of Public Right of Way Applications – Xcel Energy 

C. City Administrator Performance Evaluation Public Statement 

D. Contractor’s Licenses 

E. Correspondence 

7. PRESENTATION 

A. Mayor’s Proclamation – Foreign Exchange Student Week – Honorary Citizens 

      Romina Montti Zapata (Chile); Cedric Leuenberger (Switzerland); Veera Toikka (Finland) 

8. PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

9. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

10. ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 

A.  Resolution 17-28 Approving Conditional Use Permit Amendment for 8301 Sunset Road NE 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Records Management Technician Appointment 

12. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

13. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

14. REPORTS 

A. Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report 

15. OTHER 

A. Administrator Reports 

16. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2017 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person.  Longer presentations 

must be scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address.  Meetings are 

video recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the 

microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.”  

Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under 

advisement for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a 

proposed project.  This is not a time to debate the issue. 

 

The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 

 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 

 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project.  

Those wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes.  In cases 

where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective 

opinions voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is 

representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 

 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 

 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions 

of the presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will 

close the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until 

the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.  No further public input will be received at 

that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on September 18, 2017 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 

P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nelson, Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Public Works Director Randall; Engineer Gravel; Parks and 

Recreation Director Rygwall; Attorney Thames; Administrator Buchholtz and 

Executive Assistant Gooden  

 

Visitors: Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

 Olivia Alveshere, ABC Newspapers       

 Olivia Pearson, Student at Westwood Middle School 

 Kristine Pearson, Blaine, MN 

 Kimberly Pederson, 483 Maple Street NE 

 Ronald Stieren, 8404 Madison Street NE 

      

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda - None 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor 

 

Mayor Hansen welcomed Olivia Pearson who attended the meeting for a school project. 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

A. Approval of Minutes – September 5, 2017 

B. Disbursements 

 1. General Fund Disbursement Claim No.  17-15 -- $698,947.87 

 2. Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No. 17-16--$133,484.92 

C. Mayor’s Proclamation – Domestic Violence Awareness Month – October 

D. Approval of Third Quarter Billing for 2018 Payable 2019 Property Tax Assessment 

E. Approval of Construction Contract Change Order No. 1 

F. Approval of Contractor’s Request for Payment No. 1 – Visu-Sewer, Inc. 

G. Resolution 17-30 Cancelling or Reducing Bond Levies – 2005A GO Capital Improvement Plan Bond 

H. Contractor’s Licenses 

I. Sign Permits 

J. Correspondence 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 SEPTEMBER 18, 2017 

 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA. ROLL CALL 

VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

7.  Police Report 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reviewed the August 2017 department statistics.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department responded to five hundred eighty two calls for service for 

the month of August 2017 compared to four hundred forty one calls for service in August 2016. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that Investigator Baker reported handling sixty eight cases for the month of August.  He 

stated that Investigator Baker notes that he has seen an increase in cases being forwarded to him for 

investigation in the areas of Domestic Assaults, Controlled Substances and financial fraud involving scams. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department continues to reach out to the youth not only in Spring Lake 

Park, but also in Anoka County. He reported that seven more bikes were donated to “Bikes 4 Kids”, a local 

organization that provides bikes to kids that are not able to afford buying one themselves. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Spring Lake Park Police Department will be participating in the 14th National 

Prescription Take Back Day on October 28, 2017 from 10 AM – 2 PM at City Hall. He stated that more 

information will be posted on the City’s website. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported, in addition to addressing the day-to-day operations of the Department, he attended 

numerous meetings throughout the month representing Spring Lake Park Police Department and the City of 

Spring Lake Park.  

 

8. Parks and Recreation Report 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the Parks and Recreation Commission met and reviewed 

the concession sales during the softball tournaments and the increased fishing that is taking place at Lakeside 

Park. She stated that they discussed the partnership with the School District and the removal of distribution of 

non-school program fliers to the schools Department’s by Community Education Department. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that she met with the School District regarding the discontinuation of the distribution of 

program fliers. She stated that after meeting with the School District officials, they reconsidered and the City 

will be allowed to distribute program fliers with the school age children three times a year. She noted that the 

City will be required to pay a portion of the online service fee to advertise non-school programs.  She also 

stated that the the School District will now be charging for use of their facilities if the City is the only group 

using the building. She stated that she is looking into utilizing other facilities to hold program. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that she has applied to the DNR for the aeration permit for Spring Lake. She stated that 

she may need to apply for herbicide application for the spring due to weed growth interfering with fishing from 

the pier.  

 

 Ms. Rygwall provided a summary of the fall programs and reported that many of them have waiting lists due 

to the very good response. She reported that the extended trip to Ireland is full and there is a wait list.  She noted 

that a travel show will take place in October for the 2018 extended trips. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 SEPTEMBER 18, 2017 

 

 

Mayor Hansen stated that she is disappointed to hear that the school district partnership is strained. She was 

very happy and offered praise to the Parks and Recreation staff for the increased class participation and interest 

in the future classes. 

 

9.  New Business 

 

A.  Grahamco Parking Agreement 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the former mobile home park on Sunset Road has been purchased by 

Grahamco, LLC, a limited liability company owned by Greg Erickson, CEO of Pro Courier, a courier, delivery 

and messenger service company which serve the Twin Cities metropolitan area. He stated that Pro Courier is 

currently located at 8375 Sunset Road in Spring Lake Park.  He stated that the former mobile home park 

property, which is across the street from their current facility, was purchased to allow for the construction of a 

new building for the business. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Pro Courier would like to utilize the former mobile home park property 

temporarily for parking, while they plan construction of a new facility.   He stated that parking is an accessory 

use in the City’s zoning code, and generally must be accompanied by a principal use.  He stated that since Pro 

Courier is planning to construct a facility on site, City staff has negotiated a parking agreement with Pro Courier 

and Grahamco LLC which allows Pro Courier to park up to 50 company/and or employee owned vehicles on 

the property between the hours of 6 AM and 8 PM and up to 30 company owned vehicles on the property 

between the hours of 8 PM and 6 AM . 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the agreement will run for a year.  He stated that if Pro Courier applies 

for a building permit within the 12-month period; the agreement will extend for an additional 12 months while 

construction is taking place. He stated that the City has the ability to grant an additional six-month extension, 

if, in the City’s full discretion, the City determines that construction is substantially complete.  He stated that 

once the principal structure is constructed, the agreement will terminate and Pro Courier will have rights to 

park on the property under the City’s zoning code. He explained that if the building permit is not pulled in 12 

months, the agreement will terminate and Pro Courier will no longer be able to use the property of parking.  He 

noted that if 12 months pass after the first extension and minimal or no construction has taken place, the 

agreement will end and Pro Courier will no longer be able to use the property for parking.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated either party, with 30 days written notice to the other party, can cancel the 

agreement. He noted that Attorney Thames drafted the contract.  

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired if the existing surface will be paved to become a parking lot.  Administrator 

Buchholtz explained that site will not be paved until a building is constructed.  

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if overnight parking will be a problem with the site. He stated that there has 

been vandalism and thefts in this particular area in the past. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the property is fenced and secured, as there has been previous vandalism 

to parked cars in the past at the parking lot site. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE GRAHAMCO PARKING 

AGREEMENT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 SEPTEMBER 18, 2017 

 

 

B.  Comprehensive Plan Update Proposal 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City has received an updated Comprehensive Plan Update proposal 

from Stantec. He explained that every city in the Metropolitan Area is required by State law to update their 

comprehensive plan every ten years and submit the plan to the Metropolitan Council and surrounding 

communities for review. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the previous proposal from Stantec to update the Comprehensive Plan was 

$40,000.  He reported that City staff and Stantec have been working together and on the update. He stated the 

new proposed amount from Stantec is $22,500. 

 

Engineer Gravel stated that many of the requirements of the plan have already been completed by City staff 

and that helped in the amount of work that will be required by Stantec. 

 

Mayor Hansen reminded the Council and the residents that the Comprehensive Plan is mandated by the 

Metropolitan Council. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

PROPOSAL IN THE AMOUNT OF $22,500.00. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

10.  Engineer’s Report 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that the street striping is complete in the area of the street seal coat project took place. 

He noted that there are a few segments remaining of the sewer-lining project to complete. 

 

11.  Attorney’s Report - None 

 

12.  Reports 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff reported that she and Executive Assistant Gooden attended a forum hosted 

by Metro Cities to learn about local Comprehensive Plans.  

 

13. Other 

 

A.  Administrator Reports - None 

 

B.  Administrator Performance Evaluation 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO CLOSE MEETING TO CONDUCT CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was recessed at 7:24 PM. 

 

Mayor Hansen reconvened the meeting at 8:15 PM 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 SEPTEMBER 18, 2017 

 

 

16.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:16 PM. 

 

 

        

 

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 





















 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PUBLIC STATEMENT 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 27, 2017 

 

Here is the public statement that is required to be read the meeting after which a closed session is 

held to conduct a performance evaluation. 

 

The City Council went into closed session to conduct a performance evaluation on the City 

Administrator’s job performance.  An evaluation was given by the Council.  The evaluation 

focused on various performance areas.  The City Council believes the City Administrator’s 

job performance exceeded the job requirements of the position.  

 

 





















The Code Enforcement Report will be distributed at the meeting. 





RESOLUTION NO. 17-28 

 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS AT 8301 SUNSET 

ROAD NE IN REGARDS TO OVERNIGHT PARKING 

 

 

WHEREAS, Cliff Fraser, owner of a building located at 8301 Sunset Road NE, has made 

application for an amendment to three conditional use permits which allow automotive repair in 

the I-1 District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as follows: 

 

The South ½ of Lot 24, Spring Lake Park Plat A, subject to easement of record; and 

The North ½ of Lot 24, Spring Lake Park Plat A, subject to easement of record; and 

 

WHEREAS, mailed and published notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed 

amendment to the conditional use permits was given; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the proposed conditional use permit was held on 

August 28, 2017; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the request was made to allow additional parking spaces for overnight 

parking for the three automotive repair businesses located in the building; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered the application at the August 28, 2017 

and September 25, 2017 meetings; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval of the amendment to 

the conditional use permits, subject to conditions. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves an amendment to the  conditional use 

permits permitting automotive repair at 8301 Sunset Road NE (dated October 1, 2007, July 6, 2010 

and October 18, 2010), subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The limitation of the number of overnight parking spaces outlined in each special use 

permit is hereby removed. 

2. The property owner shall adhere to the prohibition of inoperable vehicles stored in the 

parking lot as listed within the special use permits and City Code. 

3. For the convenience of automotive business customers, the property owner shall 

designate and visibly sign a 9 parking space drop off zone (three spaces for each 

automotive business). 

4. Vehicles parked outside overnight shall not remain for more than 24 hours, except for 

vehicles parked on a Saturday night, which may remain in place until close of business 

on the following Monday. 

  



 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by  

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:. 

 

And the following voted against the same: . 

 

 

 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 2nd day of October, 

2017. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 

 



 

   

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: September 25, 2017 

 

To:  Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  

 

From:  Beth Elliott, AICP, City Planner 

 

RE: Cliff Frasier of Sunset Management, 8301 Sunset Road NE 

 Special Use Permit (SUP) Amendment 

 

 
BACKGROUND  

 

Cliff Fraser owns the commercial 

property at 8301 Sunset Road NE and 

is requesting an amendment to an 

existing SUP to expand the amount of 

outdoor overnight parking spaces in 

the parking lot.  His current SUP allows 

up to 9 cars to be parked in the lot 

overnight and he is proposing to 

increase that to 16 spaces. 

 

The property is located along County 

Highway 10 and Sunset Road NE and 

is approximately 85,000 square feet, 

or 1.95 acres.  Directly to the east are 

single-family homes, to the north is a 

plastics manufacturer; Hy-Way House 

Motel is located across the highway 

to the south.  The property itself 

includes a green lawn on the north 

side between it and the plastic manufacturer. 

 

Cliff Fraser owns the property under the business Sunset 

Management.  The site contains an L-shared one-story 

multi-tenanted building with a surface parking lot of 

approximately 43 parking spaces.  Three of the tenants 

are auto repair shops and each has its own Special Use 

Permit (SUP).  The property’s original SUP was approved in 

2010 with a number of conditions, including the limitation 

of 9 vehicles parked outside overnight.  The property also 

contains a dance studio with several events throughout 

the year that require use of the whole parking lot. 

 



August 20, 2017 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  

Page 2 of 4  

 

Re: Sunset Management SUP Amendment 

 

 

 

This item was continued from the August 28, 2017 Planning Commission meeting to allow staff 

additional time to review the function, needs, and regulations for the building’s users in relation to 

the parking lot.  While the original SUP from 2010 limited the number of cars that can be parked 

overnight in the lot, the zoning code has no current provision that regulates overnight parking. 

 

Violation History 

1. On November 5, 2014, Barry Brainard, Spring Lake Park’s Code Enforcement Director, sent 

a letter to the property owner about a series of violations identified in Police Incident 

Reports, including a business working after listed hours, inoperable vehicles parked onsite, 

outdoor storage, more than 9 vehicles parking in the surface lot overnight, and repair 

vehicles illegally parked in a handicap space.   

2. On December 3, 2014, Mr. Brainard sent a follow-up letter to the property owner requiring 

the existing violations be rectified.  Seven tickets were issued at that time and two were 

dropped for a total violation of $500.  

3. On March 24, 2015, Mr. Brainard sent a letter to the property owner advising of a violation 

of the SUP and an Administrative Offense Ticket.  Twenty-five vehicles were parked 

overnight on the site in violation of the maximum allowable 9 vehicles permitted. 

4. On May 14, 2015, Mr. Brainard sent a letter to the property owner with an official written 

complaint of long-term parking of an inoperable vehicle and 3 vehicles without license 

plates.  The letter also listed a number of nuisance complaints.  The result was another 

Administrative Offense Ticket. 

5. On August 12, 2015, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner with a Police Incident 

Report, indicating a violation of the SUP due to 15 vehicles being stored in the lot 

overnight.  The result was another Administrative Offense Ticket. 

6. On November 9, 2015, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner with an Incident 

Case Report about 15 vehicles being stored in the lot overnight and 5 vehicles without 

license plates. 

7. On November 23, 2015, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner with an Incident 

Case Report about 32 vehicles being stored in the lot overnight and 5 inoperable vehicles. 

8. On January 25, 2016, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner about complaints of 

outdoor storage of 3 inoperable vehicles and 2 others with snow accumulation in the 

parking lot. 

9. On March 21, 2016, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner with code complaints 

of long-term storage of inoperable vehicles in the parking lot and other site offenses.  The 

result was another Administrative Offense Ticket. 

10. On December 14, 2016, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner regarding code 

complaints of inoperable vehicles being stored in the parking lot for extended periods of 

time, indicated by snow accumulation. 

11. On December 20, 2016, Mr. Brainerd sent a letter to the property owner regarding 

additional parking violations of his tenants. 

12. On July 21, 2017, Johnny Vang, Code Enforcement Inspector, sent a letter to the property 

owner regarding 24 inoperable vehicles being parked in the lot overnight. 



August 20, 2017 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  

Page 3 of 4  

 

Re: Sunset Management SUP Amendment 

 

 

 

PLANNING ISSUES DISCUSSION  

 

1) Comprehensive Plan and Zoning.  The property is guided Commercial/Industrial in the 2030 

Comprehensive Plan. Zoning is I-1 Light Industrial – allowed uses include, but are not limited 

to, auto repair; light manufacturing; retail; offices; and storage and warehousing. 



August 20, 2017 

Spring Lake Park Planning Commission  

Page 4 of 4  

 

Re: Sunset Management SUP Amendment 

 

 

 

2) Parking lot. The property’s existing Special Use Permit limits overnight parking of cars to 

three for each of the three automotive businesses on site, totally nine spots.    The other 

uses in the building, such as the mosque and dance school, are not similarly limited in their 

overnight parking since the zoning code has no provision restricting overnight parking.  The 

zoning code does, however, prohibit outside storage of automobile parts or storage of 

inoperable or salvage vehicles per section 153.120 of the code.  All businesses on this 

property have a right to use the parking lot consistent with City regulations and it is the 

responsibility of the property owner to manage their shared interests. 

 

3) SUP amendment.  The original SUP from 2010 restricted overnight parking but there are no 

current restrictions in the zoning code for automotive businesses or any other use.  

Therefore, the property and its automotive uses are subject to restrictions that are not 

uniformly implemented throughout the city.  Amending the SUP to eliminate the overnight 

parking restriction will likely reduce the number of code violations but the property is still 

subject to the zoning code’s prohibition on outdoor storage of inoperable vehicles in the 

parking lot. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

We recommend that the Planning Commission modify the original SUP located at 8301 Sunset 

Road NE with these conditions: 

 

1. Remove the limitation on the number of overnight parking spaces from the SUP. 

2. Adhere to the prohibition of inoperable vehicles stored in the parking lot in the SUP. 

3. For the convenience of automotive business customers, designate and visibly sign a drop-

off zone in the parking lot of nine spaces. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 Development application 

 August 28, 2017 Planning Commission Memo 











1

Daniel Buchholtz

From: Cliff Fraser <cfraser3131@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2017 3:52 PM
To: 'Daniel Buchholtz'
Subject: Conditional Use Permit Application

Dear Mr. Buchholtz, 
 
I wish to amend my application to include all three of the existing special use permits at 8301 Sunset Road. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Clifford Fraser 

















OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission special meeting held on August 28, 2017 at the 

Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Chairperson Dircks called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Commissioners Smith, Eischens, Bernhagen, Dircks and Hansen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Building Official Brainard; City Planner Elliott; Administrator Buchholtz 

and Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors:   Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE 

    Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

    Brad Delfs, 8172 Polk Street NE     

    Pam Wolf Sladek, Life Prep Academy 

    Larry and Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE 

    Cliff Fraser, 5617 29th Avenue North, Crystal 

    Becky and Matt Hedgers, 7733 Lakeview Lane NE 

    Jeff Yurich, Kingdom Homes 

    Judy Rogge, Life Prep Academy 

 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes – July 24, 2017 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, 

APPROVING THE MINUTES OF JULY 24, 2017. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

5.  Public Hearing – Variance Request for Construction of a Deck – Matt and Becky Hedgers –  

     7733 Lakeview Lane NE 

 

Chairperson Dircks opened the public hearing at 7:03 PM 

 

City Planner Elliott provided an overview of the variance request from Kingdom Homes on behalf of 

homeowners Matt and Becky Hedgers for a variance to build a 22 x 20 foot deck within the 8-foot setback 

of a principal structure to an accessory structure at 7733 Lakeview Lane NE. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the applicant is requesting an after-the-fact variance-the deck has been constructed 

three feet from the detached garage.  She stated that the deck is required to meet the eight-foot setback 

requirement from an accessory structure. She explained that according to Chapter 153.061 of the Zoning 

Code “a detached accessory building shall not be closer than eight feet to the principal building.”  She noted 

that the deck is considered part of the principal structure since it is attached to the back of the house and is 

therefore not complying with this section of the code. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that the property owner approached City staff about his intention to build the deck and 

was provided with a handout that explains the setback requirement. She noted that he then built the deck 

without a permit. The City became aware of the deck’s construction once the property owner came in for a 

permit and an inspector inspected the newly constructed deck. 

 

Ms. Elliot reported that the deck is 20 feet wide and adjacent to a garage that is approximately 22 feet wide.  

She stated that the lot itself is 75 feet wide and the garage sites just parallel to the eastern property line.  She 

noted that there is adequate space to move the deck west out of the required setback.  She noted that it is 

the City’s understanding that the deck was built using diamond piers rather than concrete footings and 

should be easier to move west, which the deck could be moved five feet, without a setback conflict. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is guided Low Density Residential in the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

She reviewed with the Commission the criteria for considering variances as stated in the zoning code, in 

Section 153.224.   

 

Ms. Elliott stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission deny the deck variance with the 

following findings: 

 

 1.  Requiring the deck to comply with established setbacks does not cause practical difficulties 

       unique to the individual property. 

 2.  The property owner was adequately informed of the eight-foot setback principal building setback  

                  from an accessory building prior to construction beginning on the deck. 

 3.  The deck could be moved to the west without compromising the west side yard setback and is   

                   therefore not in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the code. 

 4.  Chapter 153.222 of the Zoning Code requires a permit prior to proceeding with any construction,  

                   alternation, repair, enlargement, demolition, or removal of any building. 

 5.  The property can reasonably be used without a variance. 

6.  There are no unique circumstances on this property that require the deck to be built within the  

      setback. 

7.  The use of the property as a single-family home is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 

Commissioner Eischens inquired if the resident built the deck or if a contractor was hired. He inquired as 

to why frost footings were not required.  Building Official Brainard stated that a contractor was hired and 

diamond piers were used rather than concrete footings. He stated that with diamond piers there is no 

required footing inspection. 

 

Commissioner Smith stated that the contractor should have been aware of the required setbacks.  Mr. 

Brainard stated that the International Building Code only requires a three-foot setback, which was met; 

however, the eight-foot setback is a City requirement. He noted that the setback requirements are listed in 

the deck handout that was provided to the homeowner. 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired if the eight-foot setback requirement is standard for cities.  Mr. Brainard stated 

that he is not aware what other cities require and it has not been questioned in the past. 

 

Homeowner Becky Hedgers thanked the Commission for their time and the consideration of their variance 

request.  She stated that was disappointed to learn that the staff recommendation was to deny the approval 

of the variance.  She reported that she never had received any handouts regarding the deck construction and 

had not met with any City staff to discuss the plans. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

Mr. Brainard stated that when he met with the contractor and homeowner at the final inspection, the 

contractor stated that he had a copy of the deck handout.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz inquired as to why a permit was not pulled prior to construction. Contractor Jeff 

Yurich stated that he applied for a permit on May 12, 2017 and did start some prep work. He stated that he 

informed the city that diamond piers would be used for footings. He stated that he had the deck handout 

and that he knew the deck met the required three-foot setback required by the International Building Code 

but missed the eight-foot setback city requirement. 

 

Mr. Brainard reported that the copy he received of the site plan was very unclear and dimensions were not 

clearly shown on the copy.  He recalled that the contractor informed the City that the deck had been built 

when the permit application was applied for. He noted that the contractor had the handout and chose to 

ignore the requirements. 

 

Mr. Hedgers explained that the requirement to move the deck over five feet would make the deck visible 

from the street. He stated that it would be unrealistic to shift the deck, as the door that is used to get onto 

the deck would not line up. He noted that the current garage is situated behind the house. He confirmed that 

the current alignment meets the required three-foot setback from the garage and stated that there is enough 

room between the garage and the deck. He proposed that a separation of some sort could be built between 

the deck and garage. 

 

Mr. Brainard noted that frost footings would be required if any such structure were built or added onto the 

garage. 

 

Mr. Hedgers feels that his deck does pass the practical difficulties test for the qualification of a variance. 

He stated that with a small home, the addition of the deck will provide added usable space and will enhance 

the property along with the other enhancements that have been made on the property. 

 

Mr. Hedgers stated that he had not seen the staff memo recommending denial until before the meeting and 

stated that there was miscommunication with the contractor.  He stated that they were under the impression 

that the deck was designed according to the rules.  

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for discussion from the floor. 

 

Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE, inquired if public notices were mailed to residents 

within 350 feet of the Hedgers. Administrator Buchholtz confirmed that the notices were mailed. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if the contractor has built in Spring Lake Park and if an eight-foot setback 

is common.  Mr. Yurich stated that he had not built in Spring Lake Park previously. Mr. Yurich stated that 

he thought that a five to eight foot setback is normal. 

 

Pam Wolf Sladek, 7743 Lakeview Lane NE, informed the Commission that the Hedgers have improved 

their property greatly since they have moved in. She added that if the deck were to be shifted over the five 

feet as suggested, it would be more visible from the street.   

 

Mr. Brainard noted that he did offer suggestions other than shifting the deck five feet to the west. He stated 

that he suggested shifting the existing garage to the north 24 feet to attain the eight foot required separation. 

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for any further comments from the public. Hearing none, Chairperson Dircks 

closed the public hearing. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

The public hearing was closed at 7:24 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN 

TO APPROVE VARIANCE FOR A 22 X 20 FOOT DECK AT 7733 LAKEVIEW LANE NE. ROLL 

CALL VOTE: COMMISSIONER SMITH – AYE; COMMISSIONER EISCHENS – NAY; 

COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN-AYE; COMMISSIONER HANSEN-AYE AND CHAIRPERSON 

DIRCKS-AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  

 

6.  Public Hearing– Amendment to existing Special Use Permit – Cliff Fraser- 8301 Sunset Drive NE 

 

Chairperson Dircks opened the public hearing at 7:58 PM. 

 

City Planner Elliott provided an overview for an amendment to an existing Special Use Permit for the 

commercial property located at 8301 Sunset Road NE. She stated that the owner, Cliff Fraser, would like 

to expand the amount of outdoor overnight parking spaces in the parking lot. She noted that the current 

Special Use Permit (SUP) currently allows up to nine cars to be parked in the lot overnight and he is 

proposing to increase that number to 16 spaces. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is located along County Highway 10 and Sunset Road NE and is 

approximately 85,000 square feet, or 1.95 acres. She noted that the property itself includes a green lawn on 

the north side between it and a plastic manufacturer. 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that Mr. Fraser owns the property under the business Sunset Management.  She reported 

that the site contains an L-shared one story multi-tenanted building with a surface parking of approximately 

43 parking spaces.  She stated that three of the tenants are auto repair shops and each has its own SUP.  She 

explained that the property’s original SUP was approved in 2010 with a number of conditions, including 

the limitation of nine vehicles parked outside overnight. She noted that the property also contains a dance 

studio with several units throughout the year that require use of the whole parking lot. 

 

Ms. Elliott reviewed with the Planning Commission the numerous violations that have been issued to the 

property owner for having an excessive amount of inoperable vehicles; stored vehicles and numerous 

vehicles parked overnight in the lot.   

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired how many auto businesses occupy the building.  Building Official Brainard 

reported there are three automotive repair businesses. He noted each business is allowed three overnight 

parking spaces.  

 

Mr. Fraser reported that the current SUP does not take into account the parking needs for the other 

businesses in the building. He stated that additional parking is needed as he has received citations for 

vehicles over the allowed amount of nine. He stated that three parking spaces for each the business is not 

enough. He stated that it is unknown if overnight parking is allowed as it is not stated in the SUP. 

 

Commissioner Smith inquired if the dance studio has overnight parking spaces that is utilized. Mr. Fraser 

stated that there is no overnight parking used by the dance studio. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz inquired on the square footage of the building and what business are currently in 

the building.  Mr. Fraser stated that he was not sure of the square footage.  He stated that the building houses 

three automotive repair shops; a dance studio; a carpentry business; a steel business and a mosque.  

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired as to when Mr. Fraser became the owner of the property. Mr. Fraser stated 

that he purchased the property in November 2015.   

 

Commissioner Smith inquired if the area to the north of the building could be improved for to accommodate 

additional parking and serve as an impound lot for the disabled vehicles from the mechanical shops.  Mr. 

Fraser stated that the 43 spaces he currently has would accommodate the current businesses.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated his concerns that there is not enough parking for the various uses in the 

building and the wrecked/inoperable vehicles that have been parked onsite in violation of the SUP and City 

Code. 

 

Mr. Fraser stated that the parking for the mosque is utilized only on the weekend and the dance studio uses 

additional parking when dance recitals are held. He stated that he feels that his property is the most watched 

property for vehicle violations in the City.  

 

Mr. Brainard reported that he received complaints of the dance studio customers parking on other properties 

and there is overflow parking from the dance studio.  He stated that he has met with Mr. Fraser and the 

other tenants to review the conditions and the best ways to comply with the parking issues. He stated that 

it has been an ongoing problem for quite some time.  

 

Commissioner Eischens reported 14 cars parked after business hours recently when he drove by the property 

in the evening hours. Commissioner Smith noted that the property does have unlicensed and inoperable 

vehicles at the lot and the Police do patrol areas on a regular basis.   

 

Larry Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE, stated that with Mr. Fraser being an offsite owner, he is not aware 

of the overnight and overflow parking issues. He stated that during the dance recital times the parking lot 

is full and overflow parking is occurring in the streets and local businesses.  He stated that there are many 

inoperable vehicles all the time at the lot.  He noted that many of the vehicles will often sit for months or 

weeks. He expressed that the property is an eyesore for the neighborhood and the lot is full on many 

occasions especially when dance recitals and services at the mosque take place. 

 

Mr. Brainard stated that he had ordered Mr. Fraser to remove the fence and clean up the grassy lot area in 

the past. He is concerned that if the grassy lot were to be surfaced and fenced in, the area would become a 

junk yard inside the fenced area. He noted his frustrations at the number of inoperable vehicles and the 

amount of administrative citations that have been issued for this property. 

 

Mr. Pederson expressed concern if the grassy area were to be surfaced as he thought there is a holding pond 

for storm water on the NE corner. He is worried that by paving the area, the run off would be worse. 

 

Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE, stated that she understood the SUP conditions to include no storage 

of vehicles on the property and no overnight parking. She stated that she does not want to see more overnight 

parking spaces granted and feels that the neighbors have a right to know who is operating businesses in the 

building.  She expressed concern that there are fire lane violations occurring with the overflow parking. 

 

Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE, inquired if Mr. Fraser divides the 43 parking spaces 

amongst his tenants and asked how the tenants know where to park their vehicles. Mr. Fraser stated that he 

does not specify spaces for the tenants.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz inquired if the parking requirements are explained in the lease with the tenants. 

Mr. Fraser stated that they are not explained in the lease. He stated it would be complicated to specify the 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

numbers as each business is unique and some of the businesses have work vehicles that are parked outside 

overnight.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the mosque at times could take up a lot of the parking. He expressed 

that is concerned that there might not be enough spaces allotted for a mosque use. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as to why the overnight parking escalated so much in the past two months 

and why the issue was not it pursued through the legal process. Administrator Buchholtz stated that staff 

had decided to move forward using the administrative process in hopes that Mr. Fraser would bring the 

property into compliance. 

 

Mr. Brainard stated that sensitivity is higher towards a business verses a residential property in regards to 

enforcement and complaints.  He stated that tickets are issued as permitted.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested the Planning Commission table the request for the SUP amendment 

until next month so that more information could be collected on the businesses; parking spaces could be 

calculated and square footages could be attained on the businesses. 

 

Chairperson Dircks closed the public hearing at 8:55 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS; SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO 

TABLE THE SPECIAL USE PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR 8301 SUNSET ROAD NE. ROLL CALL 

VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

7.  Public Hearing- Application for Conditional Use Permit – Pam Wolf Sladek-1628 Highway 10 NE 

 

Chairperson Dircks opened the public hearing at 8:57 PM. 

 

City Planner Elliott provided an overview of an application for a Conditional Use Permit from Pam Wolf 

Sladek to expand the opportunity to more students by providing a dormitory for students in their existing 

school space at Life Prep Academy.  Ms. Elliott reported that previously such a dormitory use was not 

allowed in the City’s zoning ordinance, but a Conditional Use Permit in the C-1 District amended the 

ordinance on August 7, 2017 to allow this use.  She noted that the City Council approved five performance 

standards in Section 153.120 for boarding schools and dormitories as part of the ordinance amendment. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the applicant is proposing to expand school attendance, and therefore dormitory 

use, to 20 teens eventually.  She stated that space within their existing building would be remodeled to 

create the dormitory space.  She stated that students would be supervised throughout the day and evening. 

She reported that the floor plan shows classrooms on the first floor and dormitory functions on the second 

floor with two to six students per room.  She stated that dorm parents would have their own residential suite 

on the second floor. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is adjacent to Arthur Street NE, running parallel to Highway 10 NE 

near Pleasant View Drive NE.  The site is comprised of six parcels with a total size of 67,500 square feet, 

about 1.5 acres.  She explained that the front portion of the building where the use is proposed is a two-

story structure with approximately 10,000 square feet of gross floor area – the school is already functioning 

on the ground floor.  This L-shaped building shares a surface parking lot with a similar one-story building 

facing it on the opposite side of the lot that included a salon and the auto sales business. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the property is guided Commercial in the City’s 2030 Land Use Plan and zoning 

on the site is C-1 Shopping Center Commercial. 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that staff recommended the Planning commission approve the Conditional Use Permit for 

the Life Prep Academy located at 1628 Highway 10 NW with the following conditions: 

 

 1.  Up to six students shall be permitted without a CUP permit 

 2.  The operator shall comply with the International Building Code and apply for any necessary  

                   permits. 

 3.  The operator shall comply with five performance standards for boarding houses and dormitories  

                  as approved by the City Council. 

 4.  The exterior property shall be cleaned up of litter on a weekly basis. 

 5.  The operator shall dedicate a secure indoor bicycle parking location for at least six bicycles. 

 6.  The operator will submit a clearly delineated and advertised policy that defines resident  

                   responsibilities and behavioral expectations as well as response to policy infractions to City  

                   staff to review and approval.  The approved policy will be posted in the building, provided to  

                   all dormitory residents, and provided to City Police. 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired if Ms. Wolf Sladek would be required to to amend the CUP each time the 

number of students increases since six students are allowed without a CUP amendment.  Ms. Elliott stated 

that since this is a new dormitory and new use, the CUP would be able to grow with the school so allowing 

six at this time seems reasonable. 

 

Commissioner Smith inquired on the supervision and care that will available to students who may have a 

greater need for services or assistance.  

 

 Ms. Wolf Sladek stated that all of the students must be highly motivated to receive their diploma. She 

explained that the students are working towards their diploma verses their GED because a diploma is 

accepted more often than a GED. She stated that proper care will be given for those students who have 

reasonable needs or would need to be seen by a professional.  She stated that she would have to deny a 

student if there was a need for extreme treatment needed. 

 

Ms. Wolf Sladek explained that there would 24-hour awake security on site and dorm parents would be on 

site for assistance overnight. She stated that the homes that the students are currently housed in do not have 

awake security as the dorm parent is only in the home with them.  

  

Commissioner Smith inquired if Ms. Wolf Sladek is aware of the age difference amongst students and 

would she be able to have access to all their personal information.  

 

Ms. Wolf Sladek explained that she has been teaching for over 35 years so she is aware of the difference 

with children. She noted that there would be separation of males and females in the dorm rooms and the 

oldest student she would accept would be 18 years old.  She stated that she would have access to their 

information and history. She stated that students can be recommended by parents, police, social workers, 

school personnel to attend Life Prep Academy.   

 

Commissioner Smith inquired as to what role Ms. Wolf Sladek has in the school. She explained that she 

handles all the roles of the Academy including the administration, fund raising and teaching. She reported 

that the school is 100 percent donation based and a private donor has donated $150,000 for the renovation 

for a dormitory.   She stated that there are other tenants in the building but they lease on month-to-month 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

basis and the property owner would provide them with adequate notice and leasing space in one of the other 

buildings that the property owner owns. 

 

Chairperson Dircks inquired if there are any regulations that need to be followed by the county or state 

level. Ms. Wolf Sladek reported that she is researching this currently. She stated that there are mandatory 

reported and legal issues that need to be met but there are currently no regulations that she is aware of.  She 

explained that Life Prep Academy would be similar to a boarding school. 

 

Building Official Brainard inquired if the building is ADA compliant and sprinkled since it is a two-story 

building.  She stated that it is not sprinkler equipped. She noted that there will not be any students with 

needs that would make the building necessary to for ADA accommodations. She stated that there are 

resources available to those persons with disabilities and have needs. 

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for public comments. 

 

Judy Rogge, Life Prep Academy, explained how she and Ms. Wolf Sladek see the importance of providing 

children a better life, education and to have a happier place to be. 

 

Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff stated that she supports Ms. Wolf Sladek and the good she is doing with the 

school. She inquired if there will be a curfew for the students. Ms. Wolf Sladek stated that on a school 

night, the curfew would be 10:00 PM and a non-school night the curfew would be midnight. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if the dormitory is set up for 20 students now, why would only six be 

allowed currently. Administrator Buchholtz explained that a more restrictive permit allows the City the 

opportunity to evaluate the impact of the use before granting any further CUP amendments to expand the 

use. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired as to what type of security training the security personnel will have. Ms. 

Wolf Sladek stated that she is unsure at this time. She predicted that the requirement of a security class or 

something similar would be in order. 

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for any additional comments. Hearing none, Chairperson Dircks closed the public 

hearing. 

 

The public hearing closed at 9:25 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO 

APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR LIFE PREP ACADEMY AT 1628 HIGHWAY 10 NE 

WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 1. UP TO SIX STUDENTS SHALL BE PERMITTED 

WITHOUT A CUP AMENDMENT; 2. THE OPERATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE 

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE AND APPLY FOR ALL NECESSARY PERMITS; 3. THE 

OPERATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FIVE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR BOARDING 

HOUSES AND DORMITORIES AS APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL; 4; THE EXTERIOR 

PROPERTY SHALL BE CLEANED UP OF LITTER ON A WEEKLY BASIS; 5.  THE OPERATOR 

SHALL DEDICATE A SECURE INDOOR BICYCLE PARKING LOCATION FOR AT LEAST SIX 

BICYCLES; 6. THE OPERATOR WILL SUBMIT A CLEARLY DELINEATED AND ADVERTISED 

POLICY THAT DEFINES RESIDENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND BEHAVIORAL EXPECTATIONS 

AS WELL AS RESPONSE TO POLICY INFRACTIONS TO CITY STAFF FOR REVIEW AND 

APPROVAL. THE APPROVED POLICY WILL BE POSTED IN THE BUILDING; PROVIDED TO 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 9 AUGUST 28, 2017 
 

 

ALL DORMITORY RESIDENTS, AND PROVIDED TO CITY POLICE.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL 

AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

8.  Other 

 

9.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO 

ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:28 PM. 





DRAFT PROCEEDINGS 

 

Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission special meeting held on September 25, 2017 at the 

Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Chairperson Dircks called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Commissioners Smith, Eischens, Bernhagen, Hansen and Dircks 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Building Official Brainard; City Planner Elliott;  

 Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant Gooden 

 

Visitors:   Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE 

    Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

    Brad Delfs, 8172 Polk Street NE 

    Larry and Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE 

    Cliff Fraser, 8301 Sunset Road NE 

    Samer Salaymeit, American Eagle Auto Repair 

    Austin Agnayedo, A & Z Auto      

  

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes – August 28, 2017 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, 

APPROVING THE MINUTES OF AUGUST 28, 2017.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

5.  Special Use Permit Amendment – Cliff Fraser, 8301 Sunset Road NE 

 

City Planner Elliott reported that Cliff Fraser owns the commercial property at 8301 Sunset Road NE and 

is requesting an amendment to an existing Special Use/Conditional Use permit (SUP) to expand the amount 

of outdoor overnight parking spaces in the parking lot.  She stated that the current SUP allows up to nine 

cars to be parked in the lot overnight and he is proposing to increase that number to 16 spaces. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that this Special Use/Conditional Use Permit Amendment request is a continued item 

from the August 28, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. She noted that the item was tabled at the August 

28, 2017 meeting to allow staff additional time to review the function, needs, and regulations for the 

building’s users in relation to the parking lot.  She stated that while the original Special Use Permit (SUP) 

from 2010 limited the number of cars that can be parked overnight in the lot, the zoning code has no current 

provision that regulated overnight parking. 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that the property’s existing SUP allows the overnight parking of cars to three for each of 

the three automotive businesses on site, totaling nine spots.  She reported that the other uses in the building, 

such as the mosque and dance school, are not similarly limited in their overnight parking.  She stated that 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 
 

 

the zoning code does, however, prohibit outside storage of automobile parts or storage of inoperable or 

salvage vehicles per section 153.120 of the code.  She noted that all businesses on this property have a right 

to use the parking lot consistent with City regulations and it is the responsibility of the property owner to 

manage their shared interests. 

 

Ms. Elliott reported that the original SUPs restricted overnight parking but there are no current overnight 

parking restrictions in the zoning code for automotive businesses or any other use. She stated that the the 

property and its automotive uses are subject to restrictions that are not uniformly implemented throughout 

the City.  She stated that amending the SUP to eliminate the overnight parking restriction will likely reduce 

the number of code violations but the property is still subject to the zoning code’s prohibition on outdoor 

storage of inoperable vehicles in the parking lot. 

 

Ms. Elliott stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission modify the original SUP located at 

8301 Sunset Road NE with these conditions: 

 

 1.  Remove the limitation on the number of overnight parking spaces from the SUP. 

 2.  Adhere to the prohibition of inoperable vehicles stored in the parking lot in the SUP. 

 3.  For the convenience of automotive business customers, designate and visibly sign a drop-off 

      zone in the parking lot of nine spaces. 

 

Commissioner Smith inquired if the nine spots had always been designated in the SUP for drop off the 

vehicles.  Ms. Elliott stated that there were nine spots to be designated for that purpose. She stated that it 

would be up to the property owner to manage those sites on his property and make sure that those spaces 

are for operable vehicles. She stated that enforcement of those spaces will be easier. 

 

Commissioner Smith stated that a vehicle could look like it is operable but it is not. He inquired as to how 

the City will be able to determine if vehicle is operable.  Ms. Elliott explained that the vehicles will need to 

be parked in the designated spaces for no more than 24 hours and if the Code Enforcement staff or the 

Police see that a vehicle has been parked in that space for more than 24 hours, ticketing can then occur.  

 

Cliff Fraser, 8301 Sunset Road NE, inquired if three designated spaces were allowed for each of the 

automotive business that would allow overnight parking.  Building Official Brainard stated that was correct, 

he noted that the vehicles must be operable. 

 

Mr. Fraser asked for clarification on the modification of the SUP.  Ms. Elliott explained that the previous 

SUP prohibited overnight parking of vehicles. She stated that other business are allowed to park vehicles 

overnight. 

 

Commissioner Smith noted that a tow truck could reasonably drop off a vehicle into the designated drop 

off site and it would be up to the automotive business to make sure that vehicle moves within the 24-hour 

time limit to be serviced. Ms. Elliott concurred and suggested that the staff recommendation be that, under 

the proposed amendment, amended to add to the condition stating that there is a 24-hour time limit. 

 

Mr. Fraser inquired if he could use all his parking spaces for overnight parking. Mr. Brainard stated as long 

as the vehicles were operable vehicles could be parked on site. He stated that the vehicles must have current 

license registration and be legal to drive on the road. He noted that they must be moved within in the 24 

hour time period. 

 

 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 
 

 

Samer Salaymeit, American Eagle Auto Repair, stated that he owns American Eagle Auto Repair and has 

worked hard to not allow inoperable vehicles to be dropped at his business. He noted that on occasion, 

vehicles have been left in the parking lot and it is unknown who the vehicle belongs to or which automotive 

business will be making the repairs. 

 

Building Official Brainard reported that he has met with the tenants on several occasions and reviewed the 

conditions of the SUP. He noted that the parking issues and the amount of vehicles would improve for a 

short amount of time but would revert back to not following the conditions.  He stated that he has issued 

numerous citations for the same violations on a regular basis.  He noted that there will be strict enforcement 

in the designated parking spaces if the vehicles are inoperable. 

 

Commissioner Hansen inquired as to how many mechanics are employed at each the automotive businesses. 

Mr. Salaymeit reported that he employs two and he thought that each of the businesses had at least two of 

their own mechanics. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz inquired as to how many stalls are in each service bay in the automotive 

businesses. Mr. Salaymeit reported he had 2 lifts in his business and could service approximately four or 

five vehicles at one time.  

 

Mr. Brainard confirmed that the overnight parking would be allowed for a 24 hour period and the existing 

conditions of the SUP remains in effect.  He stated that vehicles cannot sit for a number of days and if 

vehicles are in the lot for a number of days, they would be ticketed. 

 

Chairperson Dircks asked for any further discussion or feedback from the Commission.  

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER SMITH; SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, 

TO OPEN THE FLOOR FOR DISCUSSION AND FEEDBACK FROM MEMBERS OF THE 

AUDIENCE. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, 8309 Monroe Street NE, inquired if the businesses have a three strike rule like 

the rental housing licensing currently must follow.  Mr. Brainard stated that businesses do not follow the 

three strike rule as it only applies to rental housing and not commercial uses. 

 

Ms. Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired how the snow removal is handled at the property. Austin Agnayego, A & 

Z Auto, reported that he plows the lot during the winter season. He stated he clears the lot as soon as it 

snows continuously and needs plowing. 

 

Larry Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE, reported that he does not see how this change will help the parking 

situation and the accumulation of junked vehicles. He stated that there is no way to enforce the parking 

situation.  He stated that the SUP conditions state that the business will not have an effect on neighboring 

properties. He expressed that home values are decreasing due to the automotive businesses on this property.  

 

Jean Pederson, 1595 83rd Avenue NE, expressed her disappointment at the Planning Commission, City 

Council, City and Code Enforcement for the lack of enforcement of this property over a number of years. 

She stated that the property is turning into a junk yard and the businesses are dumping and hiding vehicles 

in the nearby streets.  

 

Mr. Fraser stated that he has never been approached by the residents living near the property. He stated that 

when he purchased the site, he was aware of past issues and incidents at the property. He stated that he 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 
 

 

hopes the business owners will communicate amongst each other so that it is clear which vehicles belong 

to the correct business.  

 

Mr. Salaymeit stated that he understands the frustration with the parking enforcement and the violations 

that were issued. He reported that he is willing to communicate with the other businesses and be available 

when a vehicle is going to be towed to his location for repair.   

 

Mr. Fraser inquired as to what Mr. Brainard would like to see happen with the new amendment. Mr. 

Brainard stated that he wants the businesses to abide by the original SUP with visible signs placed in the 

nine designated parking spaces. He stated that will help with enforcement and if any inoperable vehicles 

are parked there as well as any operable vehicles for the 24 hour allowable time. 

 

Ms. Elliott suggested that the Commission apply the new conditions as proposed to the existing SUP. She 

reminded the Commission that the Council has the authority to revoke a SUP if conditions are not being 

met and there are ongoing problems. She suggested that condition number eight of the current SUP be 

eliminated since it sets a limit on the amount of vehicles allowed to be stored outside for a 24 hour time 

period. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS; SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 

BERNHAGEN TO APPROVE SPECIAL USE PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR 8301 SUNSET ROAD NE 

WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 1) REMOVE THE LIMITATION OF THE NUMBER OF 

OVERNIGHT PARKING SPACES FROM THE SUP; 2) ADHERE TO THE PROHIBITION OF 

INOPERABLE VEHICLES STORED IN THE PARKING LOT IN THE SUP; 3) FOR THE 

CONVENIENCE OF AUTOMOTIVE BUSINESS CUSTOMERS, DESIGNATE AND VISIBLY SIGN 

A DROP OFF ZONE IN THE PARKING LOT OF NINE SPACES; 4) VEHICLES PARKED OUTSIDE 

SHALL NOT REMAIN FOR MORE THAN 24 HOURS, EXCEPT VEHICLES PARKED ON 

SATURDAY NIGHT, WHICH MAY REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL CLOSE OF BUSINESS ON THE 

FOLLOWING MONDAY. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

6.  Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Hy-Vee project is currently being reviewed by Anoka County 

and the Rice Creek Watershed District.  He stated progress made by the agencies. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that a draft ordinance would be presented to the Commission at the 

October meeting granting explicit authority as it relates to the suspension/revocation of Conditional Use 

Permits/Special Use Permits.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the City Council approved Stantec to work on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan and with assistance from Executive Assistant Gooden, the proposed fee from Stantec 

decreased significantly making this mandated project more financially manageable.  

 

7.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER HANSEN TO 

ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:14 PM. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 

 

To: Mayor and Council 

 

From: Chief Ebeltoft 

 

Re: Records Management Technician (Full-time) 

 

Date: October 2, 2017 

 

The Police Records Management Technician- Full-time position testing process has been 

completed, with sixteen applicants submitting applications. Scores from the interview, typing 

test, and Veteran’s Preference and experience points were combined to achieve the final 

ranking. It is my recommendation that the top scoring applicant be appointed to the position of 

Records Management Technician (Full-time). 

The highest scoring applicant was/is: “Lisa Murphy”. 

I am seeking authorization from the Mayor and City Council to confirm my recommendation of 

the highest scoring applicant to the position of “Records Management Technician (Full-time), 

effective October 16, 2017, at Step 4 of the current pay scale for the Records Management 

Technician position, pending a Criminal Background check.  

 





 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 10.2.17 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

Continuing to work with the Public Works Director and the Administrator on implementing 

the work plan for 2017 MS4 items.   

 

Surface Water Management Plan (193803949). 

We continue doing research (including compiling old plans) as part of the background 

research for updating the local surface water management plan including stormwater 

modeling.   

 
2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803782). 

This project includes sanitary sewer lining in the neighborhood east of Able Street and 

north of 81st Avenue.  The Contractor, Visu-Sewer, has completed most of the lining work.  

Remaining lining work will be completed over the next few weeks.  Terry Randall is 

coordinating.                    

 
2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project (193803783). 

This 2-year project will include street maintenance in the neighborhood north of 81st Ave. 

and west of Monroe St. (2017) and in the neighborhood east of Monroe St., south of 81st 

St. and west of TH 65 (2018).  The Contractor, Astech, has completed the 2017 seal coat 

work and pavement markings.  Terry Randall is coordinating.              

  

Other issues/projects.    
 

Continue to work with Coon Creek Watershed District (CCWD) Technical Advisory 

Committee (TAC) meeting.   

 

City’s Water Supply Plan (DNR requirement) has been reviewed by the DNR and 

forwarded to the Met Council for review.   

 

Reviewed plans from T-Mobile to upgrade their facilities on the Able Street water tower.  

 

Continue working with Dan, Terry, Phil Carlson, and the developer regarding the 

potential Hy-Vee development.  MnDOT and County permits are the current issues.   

  

Working on site plan construction issues for the Dominium project.  Prepared letter to 

state regarding sanitary sewer plans.  Terry Randall is monitoring day-to-day issues on the 

project.          

 
 

Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Tim Grinstead, Peter Allen, or me if you 

have any questions or require any additional information.   





 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 




















	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Presentation - Foreign Exchange Student Proclamations.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Ord & Reso - Resolution Approving Conditional Use Permit Amendment for 8301 Sunset Road NE.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



